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Oak Learning Partnership
Truziees’ Report

The trustees present their annual report togeiher with the financial statemer:s ard auditor’s repo:t of
the charitable company for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 The znnual report szives
the purposes of both a trustees' report and a directors’ report under compary law

The academy trust operates a primary, a secondary and a special schoot in Bury, Greater
Manchester, its schools have a combined pupi capacity of 1,045 and had 2 roll of 1,102 i the school
census on 20 January 2020,

School Phase Numbuer on rolt
Elms Bank Secondary 11- 19 249
Hazel Wood High School Secondary 11 - 16 630
Unsworth Primary Schocl Primary 4 - 11 223

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The academy trust is 2 company limited by guaraniee and an exempt charity The charitable
company’s memorandum and articles of association are the primary goveming documents of the
academy trust, The trustees of Oak Learning Partnership are also the directors of the charitable
corpany for the purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Oak Leaming
Partnership

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounis are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the asseis of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amounts as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
ifabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member,

Trustees' Indemnlities

The trust has insurance to protect trusiees, governors and officers from claims arising from neghigent
acts, errors or omissions occurring on trust business through the Risk Protection Agreement (RPA)
provided by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

Trustees are assessed mitially by nvitation, dependent upan their expertise. experience and skflls,
prior to a process of recruitment and appointment, Members may appoint up to § trustees as
referenced In the Articles of Association {Article 50) and are appointed for a term of 4 years.
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Oak Learning Partnership

Trusizes’ Report (¢continued)

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Tralning of Trustees

The training and induction provided for each new trustee will depend on therr existing skills and
experience. All trustees are asked to complete a skills audit and complete an application form or
provide their CV. This is followed by a meeting with the CEO and the Chair of the trust board. Prior to
appointment all trusiees are invited to a Gust board meeting. On appointment trustees are invited to
Induction sessions oraanised for all new trustees and members to acquaint them with the goveming
documents of the trust and to familiarise them with its structure and processes. This process includes
introducing each new trustee to the Academies Financial Handbaok, Charity Commission Guidance
for Trustees and the trust's governing documents. Trustees are provided with access to Oak LP
online portal where they can access all refevant decuments with copies of {policies, procedures,
minutes, accounts, budget plans and other documents) that they will need to access in order to
undertake their role as trustees,

Trustees are provided with appropriate traning opportunities and annual skills audits are undartaken
to ensure a breadth and balance of expertise is available to the Board. Trustees also have access to
the Nationa! Governors Association website.

Organisational Structure

The trustees are responsible for setting general policy, the strategic direction and growth of the trust,
adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the trust and schools by the use of financial
management and other performance information, making appointments to the Executive Leadership
Team and presenting the Annual Report and Financial Statements for approval by the Members,
The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer, The board of frustees delegate responsibility
for delivery of its vision and strategy, and holds the CEO to account for the conduct and performance
of the trust, including the performance of the schools within the trust, and for its financial
management. in turn, the CEQ line manages the other Senior Executives, and conducts their
appraisal, setting their targets and performance managing them.

The trust has drawn up a scheme of delegation which will be reviewed annually. Authority and
decision-making powers within the trust are set out within the scheme of delegation,

The trustees are responsible for the strategic development of the trust and for those decisions which
may not legaily be delegated.

The local governing bedies are responsible for their School's development plans and budgets;
monitoring the schoal by the use of budgets and management accounts and making major decisions
about the direction of the school, capital expenditure and sentor staff appointments,

Arrangements for setfing pay and remuneration of key leadership personnel

The trust board has appointed a Remuneration Committee made up of trustees. This committee has
responsibllity for setting the pay, and monitoring the performance, of key leadership personnel
The renumeration of the CEQ, CFD and Director of School Improvement is decided by the
Remuneration Committee taking into account the relevant skills and qualifications of the post holder.
The pay policy sets out the framework for making decisions on all pay including key leadership staff.
The teachers’ pay policy has been developed to comply with current legisiation and the reguiremants
of the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD) and has been consulted with steff
and/or the recognised trade unions. The pay policies underpin the trust's Performance Managemant
Policy which provides the opportunity for all staff to discuss thelr performance and development
needs in relation to their job role and pay progression. Where eligible for pay progression, the
recommendation made by the appraiser is based on the assessment of the staff member's
performance against the agreed objectives. The finzl decislon lies with each individual school's
goveming body and is based on the stalutory criteria and guidance set out in the STPCD and the
relevant teacher standards, None of the trustees or governors receive any renumeration for thelr
services as trustees or governors,



Cak L.earning Partnersiip

Trustaes’ Report {continu-}

Trade Union Facility Time

Relevant union officlals

Number of employees who were relevant union 3
officials dunng the year
Full-time equivalent employee number | 258

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of emplorses

0% 2
1% - 50% 1
51% - 99% -
100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility tima

[Total cost of facility ime £ 1,000
| Total pay bil £9,983,135
Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 0.1%

Pald trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities a5 a - %
percentage of a total pafd facilities time hours

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Oak Learning Partnership is financially independent and does not work in federation with any other
organisations The trust does, however, work collaboratively with other local schools, Manchester
Metropofitgn university, and businesses to help raise achievement and gain best value,

The founder school of the trust, Elms Bank, is also a Teaching School, Bury Teaching School Alliance
(BTSA). BTSA is a job share teaching school with Christ Church Primary School (founder school of
CC MAT). As part of BTSA, Oak Learning Partnership works collaboralively with other schools to
Improve the educational outcomes for children in Bury and beyond. Through BTSA, Eims Bank leads
the Bury Secondary Leaming Coliahorative providing CPD opportunities to ail secondary schools In
Bury.

Eims Bank also employs the secondary inciusion lead on behalf of the local authority. The
headteacher line manages the inclusion lead and Elms Bank is relmbursed for the salary costs,

Through a community asset transfer the trust has secured a long-term lease on the former Unsworth
Library which has been reopened as a community hub with opportunities for pupils at Elms Bank to
gan vocational experience. The community hub employs a community development officer whose
role is to Involve the locat community in developing the hub in partnership with statutory and voluntary
bothes
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Oak Learning Partnership

Trustees’ Rapori (continued)

The trust works with Fairfield NHS trust to dellver supporied internships for young people with
additional needs. Fairfield NHS trust has provided employment opportunities for young people who
have successfully completed thelr intemship programme.

The trust works in partnership with The Schools Games Network Inspiring young people al Hazal
Wood High School and in local primary schools ta take parl in sport and live & healthy lifestyls,

Engagement with Employess (Including disabled persons)

Oak Learning Partnership takes the engagement of its employees seriously. We recognise that in
order o be successful and deliver the very best outcomes for our young people our staff need to be
passuonate about working in our schools. The trust has a unlon recognition agreement with a range of
unions and allows staff representatives access trade union facility time. This Is important to ensure
that staff are fully informed, represented and protected in the workplace. Each school and the trust
central team are encouraged to have effective relationships with union representatives,

We have clear staff policies which support staff for example attendance, leave of absence, code of
conduct efc, Staff who have experienced a significant absence from schoo! are offered a phased
return to their dulies and occupational health referrals are undertaken to support staff who are
experiencing difficulties with their health and well-being. Staff who require access to counselling are
able to request sessions with an independent counsellor,

The pandemic has meant that employee engagement is more important than ever, (n order to support
staff and also to ensure that they understand the importance of their role in keeping scheols open to
children we have taken a number of measures to ensure the care of our staff, Staff completed a
survey on the impact of Covid. All staff are kept up to date with Covid risk assessments and working
practices so that they understand how they should work and respond to the pandemic, Staff are
supported by their line manager in understanding the safest way to access the work environment
during the pandemic and some staff who are clinically vuinerable are supported to work at home
where possible.

Each school holds regular staff meetings, briefings are held at least weekly and regular bulletins are
sent out to communicate with staff, Staff have all been trained to access meetings remotely, Each
school has a set timetable of mestings sach week organised following union guidance. There is wide
recognition that senior staff who have significant responsibilities will be unable to discharge their
duties without the ability to meet more regulary. Senior staff are consulted on additional meetings.
Ouring the pandemic the majority of meetings are held remotely, and this has also supported in some
cases a better work life balance

Each school has procedures in place for sending and receiving emails. More specific monitoring of
the workload of staff, paricuiarly at Hazel Wood High School, is to take place thls term. Each school
has a technician to offer technical support and this is being further enhanced across each school in
response to an audit of IT technician support. A new IT prowder has been commissioned to provide a

meore strategic and streamlined service

Induction Is very important to the Qak leaming Partnership. New staff have a series of induction
sessions 1o gain knowledge about policy and procedure and specific elements of the schools'
provision, working practices and training and benefits available to employees. The majority of
induction sessions are school specific In addition, three trust wide induction sessions are held In the
employees’ first year attended by all new employees to the trust. New teachers, teaching assistants
and administrative staff have a mentor to support them in their first year, All staff have an identified
line manager and regular opportuniiies to speak to their line manager about their work and well-baing.

Since the start of the pandemic some staff have been able to fulfil their professional responsibllitias
working from home, Qak Learning Partnership has encouraged this where the government has stated
that staff should work from home where this is possible. Staff have appreciated this practice, but it is
recognised that post pandemic the trust will have to establish a trust wide policy on home working,
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Oak Learning Partnership

Trustees' Repnri (continued)

All staff take partin appraisal, Appraisal is a supportive and develo:menta process designed tc
ensure that all staff have or fully develop the skills and access ta stnport they naed to carry out :heir
role effectively, It ensures that a member of staff is able fo continue to improve thelr professionz
practice and to develop (n their role,

Oak Learning Partnership is opposed o any discrimination against = perscn with disabilities besed on
assumptions of thelr ability or otherwise, Where an employee who has a diszbility is appointec 10 a
post in an academy or a pupll Is admitied, reasonable provision will be made for adjustments to *he
working conditions or environment where this is practicable,

Objectives and Activities
Objects and aims

Inclusion is at the heart of our trust and this, along with a strong moral purpose, was the commen
bond that forged the partnership between the three schools. Any schools wishing Lo join our trust in
the future must demonstrate that they share the same passion,

Qur vision is:
To give our leaming community a highly effective education in a truly inclusive environment.
Our visfon Is underpinned by 4 key values. They are;

1. Compassion
We believe that we should show compassion to others and teach our young people that fo be
compassionate demonstrates their strength of character. Encouraging compassion by z!! staff
for parents, pupfls and their families should be part of the ethos of aur schools,

2. Aspiration
We have a strong desire across our learning community to achieve our ambitions. We talleve
that we can achieve great things and overcome obstacles nd barriers,

3. Integrity
Being honest, having moral courage, overcoming difficulties, being self-reflective and

developing trust are all Important values to us.

4. Resilience
We want to encourage our pupils to be fearless and to be able to cope with setbacks. To
have strength of character, to be confident, have positive szif-esteem and be on a positive
Journey for leaming, ’ E i

Objectives, strategies and activities
Qak Learning Partnership Strategic Plan 2020 -2023

STRATEGIC AMBITIONS

Our strategic ambitions will gurde the work of the trust and that of the three schools over the next three
years. These do not represent the entirety of our ambitions but, at the present lime, are the ones that
are the greatest priority.

1. SUCCESSFUL AND FULFILLED PUPILS

Our pupils are successful with the attributes, skills and qualifications to lead fulfitling lives, They have a
high-quality school expenence and enjoy a wide range of opportunities.
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Qak Learning Partnership
Trustees’ Report (continued)

Our ambition for our pupils is that,

a. They will make good or better progress based on their individual starting points and
their specific needs

b. They will have good attitudes to leaming

¢. They will be extremely well prepared, both academically and soctally, to move onto the
next phase of their life when they leave each school

The ambition for our pupils is enabled by:

2. OURPEOPLE

Our trustees, Governors, ieadars, staff and other stakeholders are forward thinking, highly skilied, open,
hard-working and determined to enable the success of others;

Our ambition for our people is that:

a. They will provide high quality teaching to all our pupils and will be glven the opportunity
to further develop thelr skills through a qualiity programme of continuous professional
development.

b. Trustees and members will provide strong leadership and have the relevant skills and
knowledge to effectively challenge and support the senior leadership of the trust and
its schools

3. QUALITY OF EDUCATION IN INCLUSIVE SCHOOLS
Our schools are creative, vibrant, safe, compliant, financlally healthy, well-resotirced and exceptionally
well governed and led.
Qur ambition for our schools is that:

a. They wil be able to demonstrate, by their self-evaluation systems, that they are
improving schools and continuously responding to the changing needs of their
population and, when inspected by Ofsted, they wilt be graded at least “good”

b. They will offer an mclusive, exciting curriculum, which is child-centred, tailored to the
neads of the individual and which offers bespoke pathways

Our ambition for our business is'

a. To develop a cosl-effective central team of high-quality professionals which will
support the organisation across a range of areas and which can, in the future, offer its
services commergially to other organisations,

b. To have a growth sirategy that is based on a clear rationale, a strong financial footing
and which articulates our collective commitment to inclusion

Page |7



Qak Learning Partnership

Truateas’ Report (continuved)

2. STRONG COMMUNITIES AND PARTNERSHIPS

We work closely with our local communilies and parents to secure the best outcomes and apportunities
for all our puplls and thelr familles

Qur ambition for our community is that;

a. We have open engagement with parents, carers, residenis, local busineceses and
community groups fostering trusting and respeciful working refatlonships;

b. An ethos of co-production will dnve the development of policy to build strong
partnerships with all the trust's stakeholders.

Ambition to action
In order to achieve our ambitions:

= Each school will set out, in the Schoo! Development Plan, its priorilies and how they align with
the ambitions of the trust.

¢ The trustees will set out a three-year plan of their strategic objectives which will encompass
the actions that they will take to contribute to achieving our ambitions

¢ Each year from 2020-21 there will be an annual action plan providing the focus of the trust's
work in that year.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 2020-2023

1. SUCCESSFUL AND FULFILLED FUPILS
The trust identifies pupi knowledge, skills and attributes of character that we believe are key to
the current and future success of the young people in our schools. Each school develops their
own approaches fo developing the knowledge, skills and attributes.

»  Pupils will be equipped with the knowiedge and cultural capital they need to succeed In life,

+  We seek to develop confident and crealive pupils who can thrive in a changing worid,

»  Pupils will enjoy, experience excitement and find significant value in, their school expenence

= Pupils will take an active part in visits and frips, which are beyond their own life experignce or
those of their school

Ensuring exceilent well-being and suppori for all studenis

¢  Support pupils with their post—covid return to school in relation to curriculum, afliludes to
learning and mental heaith.

» Ensure that we are meeting the needs of all pupils with additional neads

= Work with the LA and our trust schools to develop a range of enhanced provisions and ensure
that provision within these 15 effectively embedded.
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Oak Learning Partnership

Trustess’ Report (continued)

Preparation for Adulthood

2.

Our schools commit to developing a gold standard Careers' Education, Advice and Guidance
provision that is carefully planned and implemented

Pupils will access meaningfu! and extended opportunities to appreciate what Higher Education,
Employment and volunteering can offer,

Our Paople

Recruiting, developing, refaining and deploying the best staff and governors (talent
management and succession planning)

We aim to be a model of good governance across the trust and a comprehensive training
schedule is set up to support governors and ensure appropriate skills and knowledge.

Our induction procedures are carefully constructed and detailed to ensure that new staff,
whatever thelr position and experience, get the best possible opportunity to excel very quickly
within their role.

From career entry through to executive headship, we seek to develop staff, through In-school
CPD, cross-trust CPD, through the Teaching Schoo! Alliance (BTSA), developing subject and
pedagogical experiise and support staff in being the best they can be.

Our HR professionals utilise information gathering from new starters, established amployeses
and those ieaving the trust's employment, so that we can get better and better in terms of
developing and deploying colleagues in all of our schools and across tha trust

Developing workforce expertise for all

The trust seeks to ensure progression based on talent and performance within each area of
expertise, in each school and across the trust, with staffing structures that enable this,

Performance management and CPD are bespoke to individuals and teams, and induction
procedures are designed to be strong.

The trust seeks to ensure that curriculum support Is excellent, sustainable and value for money
and includes staff with specialist areas of expertise and responsibility,

Employee eﬁéagement, expeﬂence and well-belng

We recognise that leaching and working in a school is a stressful job. We seek to minimise
stress where we can, being mindful of individuals' work-life balance. We also recognise that
career progression, professional growth and learning are Integral to staff well-being
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Cak Learning Partnership

Trustees’ Raport (continuedd:

QUALITY OF EDUCATION Il INCLUSIVE SCHOOLS

Our Schoot=-Fxeslianss In curriculum and enrichment

The quality of education at Unsworth, Eims Bank and Hazel Wooc 1s at isast good and z/l other
key judgements are likely to be cutstanding or good.

Safeguarding is effective in all our schools

Our aim Is to have experts in ail areas of school improvement, and to have plans for gUccessian
in place at all levels across our workforce.

We also seek to deliver a wide range of subjects and a truly broad curriculum that is affordable,
including the delivery of exceltent vecational and skills-based leanmng experiences that are age
appropriaie,

Our aim 1s to provide formal and informal teaming experiences for pupils of all ages so that they
can achieve in all areas, but also can find the things in life that meie them passionate

Our schools seek to foster the social, moral, cultural and spiritual development of our pupils in
all aspects of school Iife, so that they are interesting, respectful, open, tolerant, kind and
compagsionate young adulis as they leave our schools and go off into the world,

Our schools offer an extensive range of enrichment activities to enhance leaming in each
school, and across our schools.

QOur Business- Excellence of central service provision

Our trust growth straiegy 15 focussed on atiracting schools who =re ahgned to our ethos and
values and we will undertake rigorous due diligence processes:

We strive to achleve value for money across the trust, in all areas of operation.

We aim to ensure that our central service provision Is of sufficient capacity to deliver the next
phase of growth,

Our aim Is to provide an excellent centralised business service as a trust, enabling our Head
Teachers and staff to focus on educational provision, developing the best schools it which to
learn and work,

Our premises s -ategy aim is to provide the highest qualily learning environments and faciities
for the pupils currently within our schools, with the aim of ensuring that the premises are wel!
maintained and developed for our future generations,

The trust aims to develop a team of ICT experts, led by an ICT Strategic Lead, who are charged
with defivering high quality systems across the trust following an ICT strategic pian.
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Oak Learning Partnership

Trustess' Report (continued)

4. STRONG COMMUNITIES AND PARTNERSHIPS

Developing the Bury Teaching School Alllance exit strategy

+ To ensure that key work streams from the teaching school continue to contribite to:schenl-to-
schoo! support in both primary, special and secondary settings,

» Continue to offer the Initial Teacher Training Schools Direct Programme for Secondsry ITE,
developing high quality teachers for both the trust and other Bury schools, Growih will be
encouraged in areas of shortage where possible, providing routes Info teaching posts within
our trust.

Partnerships with employers, community organisations and higher education

¢ Each school wili develop its own relationships with local employers, community organisations
and other staksholders, We expect engagement for puplis from an early age, continuing right
through their time in our schools,

s We axpect all Key Stage 4 and Key Stage 5 students to have high quality work axperance
placements in all of our schools, Our schools are expected to engage with Alumni where
appropriate, as a resource to raise aspiration, and, of course, support the links where palential
arises between employers and further and higher education

=  For pupils who need additional support into employment a high-quality intemship programme
will be embedded.

L.ocal, regional and national links

o We will seek to develop excellent relationships with the RSC, DfE and the LA based on Integrily
and mutual support and benefit, and we seek to deveiop a great reputation,

Local community and parents

o The Oak Leamning Partnership seeks to ensure that schools are placed at the hgart of their
communities. Our aim is to ensure exceptionally strong parental links, and to have partnerships
with local organisations that can add value to our schools, be it working with young petple or
supporting our staff and governor teams, Each school has a range of engagement activities
monitored by Local Governing Boards and trustees. —

Public benefit N

The trustees have complied with the duty In section 17 of the Charlties Act 2011, to have due regard
{o public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers or duties;
In particular, the trustees consider how planned activities will contribute to the aims and objectives
they have set. The trust has provided a fully bespoke education for all pupils In its care, It fully
complies with all statutory guldance and seeks to support its wider educational objectives via a strong
community role,
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Oak Learning Partnership
Tiusteas’ Report (continied)

Strategic Report
Achievements and Performancoe

Each school within the Oak Learning Partnership operates a quality assurance systern to manitor the
quality of teaching and learning. Whilst the systern may differ i each schoal, due 1o s natuv+= or phase,
a calendar of self-evaluation @xsts to monitor pupil data against key milesiones across the year

At each school, as outcomes become available, school leaders, governors and trustees anziyse results
and work together to consider meaningful actions for the next academic year. These d-cisfons are
reflected In each school's School Development Pian,

OUTCOMES FGR 2020

The impact of the COVID-18 pandemic and subsequent lockdown had skgnificant impsact on each
school's ability to publish meaningful and fully accurate end of year outcomes for 2020. For his reason,
each Head Teacher completed an overview of end of year outcomes based on teacher azsessment
and predictions. As schools shut down in March 2020 to alt but vulnerable puplls and children of key
workers, the government announced that all testing and examinations would not take place for 2020,

Each school in our trust complied with both government and local advica, The outcomes report from
each school below reflect the position based on informed teacher assessrienis and predictions taking
into account all available evidence including school records, mock exarins and any other non-exam
assessment a student completed,

The govemment announced in April that it would not publish any school or coliege level educational
performance data based on tesls, assessments or exams for 2020. This includes accountability
measures such as Progress 8 and all statistics for primary school assassmenis for 2020, All those
waorking with schools and colleges, such as Ofsted, Department for Education regional teams and local
authorities, were instructed to use data from previous years when assessing school zand college
performance, and not the 2020 data.

Elms Bank School
Summer Examination Serles 2020

Following the COVID-1¢ social distancing measures, the government announced the cancellation of
the-summer 2020 exam series, this included GCSEs, and othetr qualifications The priority of the
government was {o ensure that ail students could move on as planned to iheir next stage of their lives;
includmg employment, college and further study, o . -~

As such Ofqual announced that all students due to slt an examination or accredltat:on in the 2018-2020
academic year, would receive a grade that fairly reflects the work that they have put in. In prder to
support the anxieties of Elms Bank students and parents a detailed letter was sent out informing of this
update and clarifying that studenis would have the opportunity to celebrate In their successes on
Thursday 20" August, as their peers had done before them.

At Elms Bank students work towards a number of qualifications, Including, GCSEs, Eniry Levels, BTEC
Awards and Pre-Entry qualifications, across a number of examination boards including; BTEC, OCR,
AQA, WIEC, Pearson, Open Awards, ASDAN, Arls Award and NCFE During the early part of phased
closure teachers were asked to begin to compile evidence for predicted grades. These predicted grades
were readly available due to the regular progress checks at Elms Bank, which allows for quality-
assurance across the subjects. Middle Leaders were asked to complle avidence portfolios which
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Oak Leaming Parinership

Trustees’ Report (continued)

Included markbook printouts, work books, coursewaork and prior attainment In order to bulld a picture of
the students’ progress. Furthermore, they were asked to consider attendance, engagement, completion
of independent study, attendance at revision sessions and level of support given in class In order to

build a holistic view of the student,

Predicted results for Summer 2020 can be found on the following page and have taken into

consideration predictions given from the Subject Leaders progress chack meetings.

Ingpire ‘ 2020 2019 | 218 2017 .

% of students with 5 GCSEs or more 25% 0%. 0% 0%..

% of students with 4 GCSEs or more 100% 80% 22% 14% .

% of studenis with 3 GCSESs or more 100% 100% 33% . 100%.

% of students with 1 GCSE or more 100% 100% 89% 100%

Explore + _

% students with 1 GCSE or more 55% "20% 100% 100%

% students with 5 L1 qualifications or above 55% 60% 100% 0%

% students with 5 EL3 quatifications or above 100% 100% 100% 40%
 Explore

% of students with § EL3 qualifications or above 14% 0% 0% 0%

| % students with 5 EL2 qualifications or above 100% 50% 40% n.a

% students with 5 EL1 qualifications or above 100% 100% 80% n.a

% students with 8 EL 1 qualifications or above 100% 75% | 0% n.a

Thrive +

% students with 5 EL1 qualifications n.a 100% n.a n.a
 Thrive/SP

% students with 2 pre entry qualifications 100% 100% 100% 100%
"All pathway comparison

% of students with 4 GCSEs or more 25% 14% 9% 5%

% of students with 3 GCSESs or more 27% 18% _13% 32% |

% of students with 1 GCSE or more 46% 22% 35% 50%

% of students with at least 8 qualifications -Level 28% 18% 17% 3%

1 and above (GCSE Equiv.) : _

% of students with at least 5 qualifications -Level 1 43% 29% 35% 29%

and above _

% of students with at least 5 qualifications -EL3 58% 36% 35% 55%

and above — =

% of students with &t least 5 qualifications -EL2 82% 46% 35% 86%

and above —

% of students with at least 5 qualifications -EL1 82% 93% | 52% 83%

and above .

% of students leaving with 1 or more accreditation 100% 100% 100% 100%

n.a * no comparative data as additional pathways used to differentiate exam targets

o The data above gives a breakdown for Key Stage Four predictions and Key Stage Five

predictions, comparable to the last three years dala.
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Qak Learning Partnersiip
Trusteey' ilaport (continua:i}

Hazel Wond High School

As schools closed staff were asked lo input a realistic prediction for the year 11s. This grade was what
the teacher thought they would get if they szi thelr exam in May/June_ it was advised this should ba
holistic i.e, drawn from many factors including attendance, classwork, mock exams, homework afiilude
to learning and any other assessmenis giving factual resulls,

The predictions were quality assured by the Assistant Head Veacher for Outcomes and ti:2 Head
Teacher, Grades were split into subjects and ranked from 9 o 1, Directors of Faculties held appropriats
meetings lo standardise the data and then rank each individual grade block. For example, all students
predicted a 4 in English were ranked from strongest 4 to the weakest, This was then quality assurad
and collated.

Schools are not being measured by these results and alf students’ college applications are being
honoured.

ACTUAL ACTUAL CTUAL National 2018
2018-2020 2018 - 2018 2017-2018

1 ATTAWNMENT

Total number of pupils in the 125 114 119 niz
cohort
Attainment 8 (average of all 39.25 331 32,8 46
pupils )

PROGR=SS = — Nations! 2018
‘ Progress 8 score (average of -0.08 -0.72 -1 2
all pupils)
"Progress 8 English (average -0.23 .45 0.73
| of all pupits) —
Progress 8 Maths (average -0.09 0,861 -108
of all pupils) _ _
Progress 8 EBacc (average 0,17 -0.53 0,97
of all pupils)
Progress 8 Open (average -0.26 -1.03 -1.55
of all pupils) :
OTHER MEASURES B
Number (percent) pupils 27 (21.6)
entered for EBacc__
9-4 English and Maths 59 (47.2%)

Students schieving Grade 9- 59 (47.2%) 38 38 . 65
4 (Standard) Inc. Eng and =

Math
Students achieving Grade 9- 32 (25.6%) 36 38 61
5§ {Standard) inc. Eng and

Math

Unsworth Primary School

Following the COVID-18 Pandemic, the government removed all statutory assessments for 2020, this
included tha new Times Tables Check for Y4 Below is an overview where the school would have
predicted pupils to be and this has been informed by the final assessment information that teachers
had at the end of March.

Page | 14




Oak Learning Partnership
Trustees’ Repost (confinued)

GLD (The percentage of children achieving a Good Level of Development by the end of their
Reception year)

The prediction for the end of the year was 65% (National 2019 72%)

¢ This cohort has had a very unseltied Reception year with the class teacher leaving her post in
December and & supply t=acher who worked alongside the class teacher for autumn 2 also
leaving the post at the end of January after 3 weeks, All the transition work that had been
developed across auturnn 2 was effectively lost, as a new teacher had to be put in place.

s  After targeted provision and quality first teaching, the final assessments were due to be made
in June, so it is unltkely that this cohort will have achieved the predicted GLD above.

e From the interim assessment (January 2020) and evidence from pupil learning to March, we
can confidently say that 44% (14 pupils) would have achieved a GLD but the other 21% (6
puplls) were 2ll being targeted and the term of teaching was needed to ensure a GLD was
achieved.

Phonics (The percentage of children achieving the Y41 Phonics Check)
The prediction for the end of the year was 72% {National 2019 82%)

s A mock screening check was conducted at the start of February 2020. 28% of the cohort pessed
the check (9 out of 32), with a further 7 children being 5 or less marks off the pass mark of 32,
which Indicates that 50% of the cohort can be confidently deemed as being on track.

¢ Qut of the other 50% there were 5 children with SEND (16%), 4 of which had an EHCP who
would not have achieved the check and another group of puplls who would not have achieved
the check and may move onto SEN Support: This SEND faclor impacts significantly on this
cohort's overall figure.

K81 (Teacher Assessments in Reading, Writing and Maths by the end of Y2 informed by SATs
in Reading and Maths)

The predictions for the end of the year were:

» Reading-72% to achieve age-related expectations {ARE} & 24% to be greater depth (GD)
Natipna) 2019 75% & 25%.

> Writing-72% ARE & 9% GD {National 2019 69% & 15%)

*  Maths-75% & 25% {National 2019 76% & 22%)

Within the class 16% (5 pupils) have SEND, with 1 pupil having an EHCP and 2 pupils being in the
SLRP. A further 19% (6} have been identified as requiring Intervention and additional quality first
teaching, which was been provided across the autumn and spring term through small group
interventions and targeted 1-1 quality first teaching from the class teacher and KS1 leader. Out of thess
pupils 9% {3) were targeted to achieve age related expectation through the support being provided for
the full academic year.
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Oak lLearning Partnership
Trustees’ Report (contlnucd)

KS2 {SAT scores in Reading and Maths, teacher assessment in writing, a comkbined totz] of
children achieving age related expectation in all 3 subjecss 2ad progress scrwes in each
seperate subject by the end of Y6).

The predictions for the end of the year were

~ Reading-83% ARE & 30% High Score (Mational 201¢ 73% & 23%)
> Wiriting-80% ARE & 17% Greater Depth {(National 201S 75% & 20%)
» Maths-77% ARE & 27% High Score (National 2019 72% & 24%)

» Combined-77% (National 2019 65%)

Reading

A reading SAT was undertaken in Februarv 2020 and 73% (22 out of 30) achleved a scaled score of
100 or more whilch Is age expectation, Out of these 20% (6} achieved a high scaled scors, A further
10% (3} achieved a scaled score of 96 or mare,

Writing

In the last teacher assessment 80% (24) were at age related expectafion and 13% were at grester
depth.

1 more child would have achieved greater depth and was receiving addiiional intervention

Niatis

A maths SAT was undertaken In February 2020 and 43% (13} achieved a scaled score of 100 or more
which is age expectation, Out of these non-achieved 110 or meie, which is deemead as a high score A
furthver 20% (6) achieved a score of 99 and 13% (4) achieved 97 or above,

Proaress

This year 6 cohort would have been the first nationally to reach year 6 having done the new KS1 SATs
for the rnew national currculum in 2018, Progress measures were due to be completely differen! and
not comparable to previous years, so no judgments on progress can be made or predicled as there is
no methodology for this cohort as it was due to be released in Getober 2020.

Going Concera

After making appropriate enquiries, the trustees have a reasenable expectation that the frusi has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reasen, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financiel statements. Further detalls
regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies,



Qak Learning Partnership

Trustees' Report {(continued)

Financial review

The majority of the trust and academy income i obtained from the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purpose,.
The grants received from the ESFA in the year to 31* August 2020 and the associated expendilure
are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financizal Activities,

The trust also recelved grants from the ESFA and other organisations. In accordance with the
Charities Statement of Recommended Practice ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP
2005), such grants are shown [n the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the
restricted general fund and fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by
depreciation charges over the expected useful iife of the assets concerned.

During the year ended 31% August 2020, tofal expenditure of £12,344,045 was incurred (which
excludes depreciation of £631,981 and FRS102 service costs of £812,000), which was covered by
recurrent grant income from the ESFA, {ogether with other incoming resources of £12,837,456
{excluding capital grant income), The surplus of income over expenditure for the year was £779,783.
This is in line with the trust's strategy to build and maintain adequate reserves to furid future
improvements and development of the organisation and infrastructure,

Unrestricted income and expenditure in the year ended 31% August 2020 amounted to £286,382 and
£40,352 respectively.

At 34* August 2020 the net book value of fixed assets amounted to £14,831,915 and maovements in
the fixed assets are shown in note 12 fo the financia! statements,

Reserves policy

The majority of the {rust's income is obtained from the Department for education (DfE) via the
Education Skiils Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted
for particular purposes. Such grants and all associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in
the Statement of Financial Activities.

It is important that the frust ensures that it is able to malntain a level of reserves to support
unforeseen events so that the schools are able to continue delivering high quality provisian to supporl
some of the most disadvantaged children in the area. As the same time, it s important that the trust
ensures that the funding is used {o benefit its existing students and therefore the reserves must be

reviewed on a regular basis.

It will be the responsibliity of the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee to menitor the levels of reservas,
The committee will ensure that a prudent level of reserves is maintained, as well as ensuring that
spending continues to support high quality learning provision.

Investment Policy

Trust cash balances are safeguarded by investing them in an interest-bearing current account with
Lioyds Bank PLC. It Is unlikely that the trust will currently acquire an investment portfolio. Howmvar,
the general policy objective would be to invest surplus funds prudentiy.
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Cak Learning Partnership

Trustees’ Report (continusd}

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The trust has a risk management process In place to assess strategic risks and implement
appropriate risk management strategies This has involved identifying the key risks the whole trust
faces, scoring and prioritising them in terms of their potential opesationz! znd financial impact.
assessing the likelihood of occurrence and ideniifying means of mitigating the risks. The trusis high
impact risks include: ~

Financial risks including reductions in fanding, increasing employment costs, poor budgetary
control, weak financlal controls, poor financial planning or fvzud.

The trust continually seeks opportunities for group procurement and shared services across the trust
fo make savings, To ensure rigorous financial management acress the trusi there is close budget and
cashfiow monitering on a monthly basis and each academy has 2 3-year budget forecast in p'ace,
Trust-wide finance policies are in place to ensure robust monitori:ag and reporting and strong mtemal
financial controls.

Child protection and safeguarding fallings.

The trust has a number of systems, policies, procedures, fraining and controls, as we as designaled
responsible persons, qualified In their arez of expertise, to help ensure it complies with legislative
requirements, Each academy can seek legal advice whare appropriate and/or obtain other expent
advice and services from the Local Authority

Lack of improvement in educational performance or attendance.
This has been mitigated by the continual monitoring of educational performarice.

Premises and facilities management difficulties including unaffordables buflding malnterance
programmes, failure of the fabric of & buliding and financial implicaticns of shared sites. Each
academy has had a condition survey carried out to address routine maintenance, compliance work
and longer-lerm pianned maintenance and repair, winch 1s managed by experlenced premises teams
and the central trust team has appainied an Estates and Facilities Manager to add relevant skills and
capacity in this area.

The impact of the loss of central or key academy staff. Work is underway te establish robust
business continuity plans and succession planning undertaken across the trust.

Fundraising
The trust does not rely on fundraising activity to supports its financial position The trust underiakes

fund raising for a number of charities that the individual schools have adopted, The trust collects and
banks all donations. The trust does not use any commercial participators or professional fundraisars,
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Oak Learning Partnership

Trustees’ Rsgport {(continued)

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 S=ptember 2019 to 21
|August 2020

[ Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (KVVh) 967,835

Energy consumption break down (KWh) (optional)

e gas,
e electricity,
s transport fuel

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CQ2e

Gas consumpion 38.36
Owned transport — mini-buses 213

Total scope 1 40,49

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

'Purchased electricity 174.42

Scobe 3 emissions in metric tonnes C0O2a

Business travel in employee owned vehicles 0.65
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes COZe 216.56
Intensity ratio

Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.1¢

Quantification and Reporting Methodoloay - -

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also
used the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2020 UK o
Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensitv measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total groés emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupll, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiancy

We have Installed smart meters across all sites and increased video conferencing technology for
staff meetings, to reduce the need for trave! between sites,
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Oak Learning Partnership
Trusiees’ Report (coniinued)

Plans for Future Periods

The trust will continue to strive to provide outstanding education bespoke to its individual pupils. To
achteve this, we will alm to continue to attract high quality teachers and support staff and davelop our
employees (o achieve thelr potential The trust aims to priontise the embedding of policies and
practices,

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

The trust and its trustees do not act as the custodian trustees of any other charity,

Auditor

Insofar as the trustees are aware:

¢ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware

» the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor Is aware of that informafian,

The Trustees’ Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of fruslees,

as the company directors, on 16 December 2020 and signed on the board's behalf by:

-

B Garner
Chair of Trustees
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Oak Learning Partnership

Governance Staterment

Scope of responsibility

As lrustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Ogk Laaming
Partnership has an effective and appropriate system of control, financia! and otherwise, Howaver,
such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss,

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook
and compatency framework for governance,

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financlal controls conform with the requirements of both propefaly and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to
it in the funding agreement between Oak Learning Partnership and the Secretary of State for
Education. They are also responsibie for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses
or breakdowns In internal control,

Governance

The information on governance included here supplement that described it the Trustees' Report and
in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, The board of trustees has formally met 4 times during
the period. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended out of a possible
B Garner, Chair 3 5
£ Amadi 2 5
C Atherden 3 5
A Boroda 5 5
D Brown, Vice Chair 2 5
8 Gaskill 5 5
G Graham 3 5
S Howarth 4 5
E Parkinson, CEO, Accounting Officer 4 5
G Pullan 2 4
P Rogers 3 5

The Finance, Risk and Audit Committee is a committee of the main board of frustees, Its role is
one of oversight and it Is tasked with reviewing the overall financial position and risk profile of the trust
for appropriateness and to monitor the risk management technigues employed at all levels within the
trust and recsiving the Auditors report before Board approval, The committee shall make whatever
recommendaiions to the board that it deems appropriate within the context of Its terms of refererice.

During the year, S Howarth, who Is 2 qualified accountant, chaired the committee. Attendance at
meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended out of a possible
S Howarth (chair) 4 4
B Gamer 4 4
E Amadi 0 4
D Brown 3 4
P Rogers 2 4
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Gevermnance Statement (continued)

The Standards and Cursiculum Commitiee is a committee of the main hoard of trustees  Its mla s
one of oversight. Itis tasked with reviewing the provision, stancards, governance and lsadership
performance of all trust schools, It provides a performance profile to the trust board and
agrees/monitors the effectiveness of interventions to support reiative undar-parformance. The
commitiee shall make whatever recommeridaiicns to the board that it deeme appropriate within the
context of lis tarms of reference to assist the decision making of the board of trustees by anabling
more delailed consideration to be grven 1o the best means of fulfilting the Yrustees and LGS’s
responsibility to ensure a strategic and systematic approach to promoting high standards of
educational achievement.

Dunng the year, S Gaskill chaired the committes. Attendance at meetings w the vear was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attendad out of a possible
S Gaskill (chair) 3 3
A Boroda 3 3
G Graham 2 3
G Pullan 3 3
C Atherden 2 3

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the acadamy
dellvers good value In the use of public resources, The Accounting Officer understands that vaiue for
money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in retum for the taxpayer
resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of ‘rustees where value for money can
be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the
trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by collaborative working across lhe
trust, building capacity and delivering savings through joint procurement. Examples in the year
include,

Focus on improving educationai results

» Developing excellent tracking systems to record all aspects of pupil progress throughout fhe
trust in order to ensure that interventions and support are targeted to achieve best value,

= Targeted support for pupils in need of intervention In key curriculum arsas,

* Regular review of the staffing structure to ensure staff are efficiently deployed, are
sppropriately qualified and are spacialists in their area.

Ensuring robust g;vemance and oversight of finances

» The board of trustees acknowledges overall responsthility for ensuring an effective and
appropriate system of financlal control. The system of internal financial control is based on a
framework of regular management Information and administrative procedures including the
segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.

* The board of trustees ensures that comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems exlst
and approve the trust annual budget.

+ The board of trustees has appointed External and Internal Auditors to provide the necessary
assurances on intemnal controis
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Oak Learning Partnership

Governance Statemei:t (continued)

Ensuring value for money purchasing and use of resources

* Promoting fair competition through quotations and tenders in accordance with financial
policies, to ensure that goods and services are secured in the most economlcal way.

* Reviewing all contracts with service providers on an annual basis to ensure they are fit for
purpose and provide best value,

» Monitoring enargy costs through effective central management of the school sites,

Improving income generation
o  School improvement support to other schools

¢ Exploring opportunilies to generate income through the increased hire of the school sites.

« Recognising the need to continue to sxplore every opportunity to generate further incoma for
both the public and stakehalder benefit.

Reviewing controls and managing risk

¢ Undertaking financlal risk assessments based in the potential key risks and ensuring key
controls are in place to reduce the risks.

The Purposse of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable leve! rather then o
eliminate aif risk of failure to achleve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide
reasonable and nol absolute assurance of effectiveness  The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to |dentify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being reallsed and the impact
should be realised, and lo manage them efficlently, effectively and economicslly.

The system of internal control has been in place in Ozsk Learning Partnership for the period 1
September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statemenis.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the trust 1s exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
board of trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifylng, evaluating and
managing the academy’s significant risks, that has been in place for the period 1 September 2018 o
31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statemente  This
process is reviewed regularly by the board of trustees,
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Oak Learning Partnership

CGovernance Staternent {cantinuad)

The Risk and Control Framework

The academy’s systems of internal financial control are basz2d on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures inciuding the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability, in particular it inciudes-

¢ Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periogic
financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

+ Regular reviews by trustees of reporls which mdiczte financlal performance agzinst the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes:

« Setting targets to measure financial and other performance,
« Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
s Delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
» Identification and management of nsks,
The board of irustees has decided to buy-in an iniemal audit service from Hallidays
The intemna! auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performiing
a range of checks an the academy trust's financial and other systems In particuiar, the checks
carried out in the current period included
e testing of payroll systems
» Testing of purchase systems
¢ testing of control accountf bank reconciliations
On a termly basis, the auditor reports io the board of trustees, through the Finance, Risk
and Audit Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the
board of rustees’ financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report
to the commitiee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and
concluslons to help the committee cansider actions and assess year on year progress.

Review of effectiveness .

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effecliveness: of
the system of internal control. Dunng the period in question the review has been informed by:

«  The work of the internal auditor;
¢ The work of the external auditor;
e The financlal management and governance seif-assessment process,

s  The work of the CFQ within the trust who has responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the Internal control framework .

The Accounting Officer has a pian to address weaknesses identified and to ensure continuous
improvement of the systams In place,
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Oak Learning Partnership

Governance Statement {continued)

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 16 Dacember 2020 and signed on its
behalf, by,

5 € I lorhiras
B Ga

E Parkinson

Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer

Data: 16 December 2020 Date: 16 December 2020
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Oak Leaming Partnership

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Oak Leamning Parinershup, | have considered my responsivility to notify the
academy frust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of matenal
irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the
academy trust, under the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of
State for Education. As part of my consideration, ! hava had cue regard to the requirements of the
Academies Financial Handbook 20189,

{ confirm that | and the academy trust board of frustees are ztle to identify any material Irregularity or
Improper use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of funding under the academy trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook

2019,

I confirm that no instances of material iregulzarity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are ldentified after the date of this statement, these will be
notified {o the beard of trustees and ESFA.

€4 Poreum,

E Parkinson
Accounting Officer

Date: 16 December 2020
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Oak Learning Partnership

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with
the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skilis Funding Agency, United
Kingdorn Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financiai statements for each financial year, Under
company law, the trustees must not approve the financial staterents uniess they are satisfied that
they glve a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statemenis, the trustees are required to;

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020;

= make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unfess It is inappropriate to
presume that the charitable company will continue In business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them io ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other Irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of
good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFADIE

have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in

other jurisdictions, N

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 16 December 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

b fourr

B Garner
Chair of Trustees

Date: 16 December 2020
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CQak Learning Partnership

Independent Auditor's Rep:ort on the Financial Statements to ths Membuers of
QOak Learning Partnership

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Oak Learning Partnership (the ‘Academy’) for the year
ended 31 August 2020, which camprise the Stalement of Financial Activities incorporating Income
and Expenditure Account, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is appiicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 10Z ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy trust's affairs at 31 August 2020 and of its
Incoming resources and application of resources, including its Income and exsenditure, for the
year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice,

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts
Direction 2019 to 2020.

Sasls for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report We are Indepandent of
the Academy n accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
cbtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matiers in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

+ the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements 1s not appropriate; or

_ the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Academy’s ability to continue to adopt the going concemn
basls of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial

__ statements are authorised for issue. -

Other information {covers the Reference and Administrative Detalls, the Trusiees' Regort and
Strategic Report and the Governance Statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's repart
thereon, Our opinion on the financlal statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,
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Oak Learning Partnership

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financlal Statements to the Members of
Oak Leaming Partnership {continued)

material misstatement of the other Information. If, based on the work wa have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and Trustees’ Report for the finandial yesar for which
the financial staiements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements: and

* the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal
requiremnents.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtsinad in the
course of the audit, we have not identffied material misstatements in the Strategic Report and

Trustees’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 rejuires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

- the financlal statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or
+ certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received ali the Information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Oak Learning Partnership

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Oak Learning Partnership (continued)

Responsibliities of Trustees

As explained more fully In the BWQITM'HWMH[HMMWERM
Tm-mmhhmmﬁmurmmmmmmhﬂmmm
mm:mwmm.mhrmrnumlmmmuummmmuhnmm
%ﬂmﬁmﬂﬂmmm“ﬁEMMMthmu
to Or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsidle for assessing the Acedamy's
ability to continue as a going concem, disciosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concem and
using the going concem basis of accoumfing uniess the Trustees either intend to liquidate the
Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as & whole
are free from malerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audiior's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect 8 material misstalemant
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individusily
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the econamic decisions of usars
taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scapticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audlit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit
mmammmmmmammwmm The risk of not
detecting & material misstatement resuling from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error,
&8 fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant fo the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Academy’s intemal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and relaled disclosures made by the Trustees.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees use of the going concern basls of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtalned, whether a material uncertainty exists related lo events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a galng
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
audltor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are
Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Academy to
cease to continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall preseniation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achleves fair presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Academy to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Academy audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Oak Learning Partnership

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Oak Learning Partnership (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, smong other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant daficlancies in
internal control that we identify during our audiL

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy’s Trusices, as a bedy, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaksn so that we might state to the
Academy's trustees those matters we are required to state fo them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibifity to
anyone other than the Academy and its Trustees, as a body, for our sudit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

f_f; {
L)
A VA SN ) /o

Anna Bennett (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Hallldays, Statutory Auditor

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

Cheshire

SK4 2HD

N . .
Date:.....c vt o L LT
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Oak Learning Partnership

Independent Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to Oak Learning
Partnership and the Education and Skilis Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated and further 1o the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as Included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019
o 2020, we have camisd out an engagement to obtain limited assurence about whsther the
wmuwwmmwmmnﬂmmmm_mm1
September 2018 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliamant and
the financial transacfions conform to the authorities which govemn them.

This report is made solely to Oak Learning Partnership and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement lstter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to Oak Lsaming
Partnership and the ESFA those matters we are required to state In a report and for no other purposs.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
Oak Leaming Partnership and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have
formed,

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Govemning Body's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 March 2019 and the Academias
Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbirsed and
income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the suthorilies which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established In the Uniled Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report In accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We regiort fo you
whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that In afll matesisi
respects, expendiure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to 31
fugust 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform fo the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement In accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020

issued by ESFA. We performed 2 limiled assurance engagement as defined in ourengagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain

Information and explanations In order to provide us with sufficlent appropriate evidence to EXPIEGS &

negative conclusion on regutarity,

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement

and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of-all

significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we

do not express a positive opinion. B

Our engagement Includes examination, on a test basls, of evidence relevant to the regularity and

propriely of the academy trust's income and expenditure,

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

« We have confirmed that the activities conform to the trust's framawork of authorities. As identified
by review of minutes, management accounts, discussion with the accounting officer and other key
management personnel,

* We have carmied out an analytical review as part of the consideration of whether general aclivilles
of the trust are within the trust's framework of authorities.

* We have considered the evidence supporting the accounting officers statement on regularity,
propristy and compliance and have evaluated the general control envircnment of the trust and
extended the procedures required for financial statements to include regularity.
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Oak L.earning Parthership

independent Reporting Accountant’s Report on Regularity to Oak Learning
Partnership and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

+ We have assessed and tested a sample of the specific control activities over regulanty of a
particular activity In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have considered whether the
activity is permissible within the trust's framework of authorities. We confirm that each item tested
has been appropriately authorised in accordance with the trust's delegated authorities and that the
Internal delegations have been approved by the Trust Board and conform to the limits set by the
Department for Education

+ Formal representations have been obtained from the governing body and the accounting officer
acknowledging their responsibiiities including disclosing all non-compliance with laws and
regulations specific to the authorising framework, access to accounting records, provision of
information and explanations, and other matters where direct evidence is not available

+ In performing sample testing of expenditure, we have reviewed against specific terms of grant
funding within the funding agreement. We have reviewed the list of suppliers and have considered
whether supplies are from related parties and have reviewed minutes for evidence of declaration of
interest, and whether or not there was involvement in the decision to order from this supplier

+ We have performed sample testing of other income and tested whether activities are parmitted
within the trust's charitable objects

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2019 to
31 August 2020 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them

Reporting Accountant

Hallidays

Chartered Accountants
and

Registered Auditors

Riverside House

Kings Reach Business Park
Yew Street

Stockport

Cheshire

SK4 2HD

Date .. ‘(TVC//O\/IGLI
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Oak Learning Partnership

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

fncome and endowments from:

Veluntary income

Donations and capital
grants

Transfer frem local
authority on conversion

Charitable activities:
Funding for the

Academy frust's
educational operations

Other trading activities
Investments

Total

Expenditure on;
Raising funds

Chariteble activitios:

Academy trust
educational operations

Total

Net
Incomef{expenditurs)

Transfers between
funds

_ Other recognised
gains and losses
Actuarial (losses) /
gains on defined benefit
pension schemes
Gainsflosses on
revaluation of fixed
asgsets

Net movement in
funds/{deficit)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/{deficit)
brought forward at 1
September 2019

F -9

23

Restricted
Restricted Restricted Fixed

Unrestricted Genoral Pension Asset 2018720
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total

£ £ £ £ £
- 24,065 - 32,053 56,118

- . - 78,788 78,788

- 12,799,136 - - 12,799,136
285,707 14,256 - - 209 863
675 - - - 675
286,382 12,837,456 - 110,841 13234.67¢
40,352 - - - 40,352
- 12,303,693 812,000 531,980 13.54'."5?3

40,352 12,303,603 812,000 531,980 13,688,025
246,030 533,763 (812,000) (421,139) (453, 345)
- {200,425) - 200,425 5

- - (987,000) - (987,000)

" ) - 13815000 13815000
246,030 333,338 (1,799,000) 13,584,286 12,374,654
302,442 331,621 (3,779,000) 1,260,712  (1,884,325)
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Oak Learning Partnership

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(including income and Expenditure Account) (continued)

Restricted
Restricted Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Pension Asset 2018720

Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
Note £ £ £ £ £
Total funds/{deficit)
carried forward at 31 .
August 2020 548,472 664,850 (5578,000) 14,854,008 10490329
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Oak Learning Partnership

Statement of Financial Activities for the Period from 7 February 2019 to 31
August 2019
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

income and endowments from:

Voluntary income

Daonatiens and capital
grants 2

Transfer from local
authority on conversion

Charitable activities:

Funding for the
Academy trust's
educational operations

Other trading activities
Investments 5

Total

0

Expenditure on:
Raising funds 8

Charitable activities:

Academy trust
educational operations 7

Total

Net
incoma/(expenditure)

Transfers between
funds

Other recognised

gains and losses

Actuarial (losses) /

azins on defined benefit
pension schemes 23

Net movement in
tunds/(deficit)

Reconcillation of funds

Total funds/(deficit)
carmigd forward at 31
August 2019
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Restricted
Restricted Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Pension Asset 201919
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£ £ £ £ £

- 13,493 - 41,3086 54,798
282,164 - {3,124,000) 1,212435 (1,629,401)
- 4,785,010 - - 4,785,010

68,692 4,844 - - 73,538
177 - - - 177
351,033 4,803,347 (3,124,000) 1,253,741 3 121
48,591 - - - 48,631

- 4,348,837 393,000 115,218  4.857.855

48591 4,349,637 393,000 115218 4,805 445
302,442 453,710 (3,517,000) 1,138,523 (1.622,325)
- (122,189) - 122,189 -

= - (262,000 - (262,000)
302,442 331,521  (3,779,000) 1,260,712 (1,884 325)
302,442 331,621 (3,779,000} 1,260,712 {11534!@



Oak Learning Partnership

(Registration number: 11813193)
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2020

31 August 31 August

2020 2019
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 14,831,915 1,280,712
Current assets
Debtors 13 416,513 478,448
Cash at bank and in hand 1,703,544 92,018
2,120,057 1,471,365
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 14 (883,6843) (B37.402)
Net current assets 1,236,414 633,883
Total assets less cument liabilities 16,066,329 1,894 875
Net assets excluding pension liability 16,068,329 1,884,676
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 23 (5,678,000} {3,778,000)
Net asssts/(llabilities) including pension hiability 10,480,320 (1,884,326)
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funde
Restricted general fund 15 664,850 331,521
Restricted fixed asset fund 15 14,854,998 1,260,712
Restricted pension fund 15 {6,578,000) _ (3,778,000)
9,941,857 (2,186,767)
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 15 548,472 302 442
Total funds 10,490,329 n.am_}aas:-'

The ﬂgﬂndﬂl statements on pages 34 lo B4 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue
on . LA£I34%0, and signed on their behalf by: )




Oak Learning Partnership
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

31 August 31 August

2020 2019
Note £ £

Cash flows from operating activitios

Net cash provided by operating activities 18 966,079 2,045,203
Cash transferred on conversion 1o an academy trust - 282,164
Cash fiows from investing activities 19 (255454) _ (1,334.448)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 710,625 992,919
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 992,919 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 20 1,703,544 882 016
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Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation
mmmm&mmmmnmummhmmmm1mm
bu&nmpmadunduﬂmhhtnﬂnﬂmﬂmﬁunhmmmhﬁmddﬂepwﬁnn
Standard Applicable In the UK and Republic of irelend (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to cherities prepering their accounts in
mmmnmwaﬁMMMhmuxmn@mﬂaMdﬁs
mz}{cnmmsuﬂpfms1m;}.mnmaumhmmmm1nmmmwesm
the Chariies Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2008,

Going concem
mmmmuﬂmdmﬂwmhnmr.aMMMw
mmmuumummhmmmmmnsmmmmMmmmm
ﬁnmmmrhmmhuaaaudngmmmmﬂummm_mmu
period of at lsas! one year from the date of authorisation for lssue of the financial sistsiments snd
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources (o continue In operational existence
hrMMhNMWMmMMMMMMMMsWW
man@ummmmmmhmmwnmmmmwmnWh
preparing the financkal statements,

income
All Incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the

receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a recejvable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is recelved in advance of meslilg any
perfarmance<alated conditions there Is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition
is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related condiions are
met. Where entitiement occurs befere income is received, the Income is accrued,

- General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial-Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement In respect of the period s deducted from income and recognised

as a liability. B -

Capital grants are recognised in full when there Is an unconditiona! entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are spent on capital projects in line with the ferms and conditions of the grant. Capiial grants
are recognised when there Is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they

are expended,
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Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
{continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Sponsorship income

Smmbhmepvdhdhhmmm“mhndmmnhmhﬂm
MHMWHMMWMMIBMMmMnm
mmmmm:,mmswhmmmummmmi

Donations

Denations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no peiformanceseisied conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be refiably measured,

Cther income

Other Income, including the hire of facifities, is recognised in the pericd it is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and setvices

Goods donatad mm«mmmﬁnm.mmwmmmmm
mmmunh.ﬂﬂmnmhmmwmmmuhmhmm
‘Income from other trading activities', Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘income
mmmm*mhmmmwammmmm nctivities”.
Mnhhh:pmﬂuihﬁlrvﬂuammuhﬂuwhmufhwmmmmm
mmindhﬂnﬂmndulalﬂnmuﬂunlﬂﬂmmmﬂ.?hhh‘mmahﬂmgniudhihh'lm
from other trading activities'.

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is & fixed sesel it is measured at falr value, unless It is impraclical to
measure this raliably, |nm¢mmmufmmmummmmm.mmh
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included In the appropriate fixed
-Mmtaguwlndﬁamamh::wnrﬂummmmbm;hnmuﬂnnmudﬂmmmmrhm‘s
accounting policles.

Expenditure

Expendllure is recognised once thare is a legal or constructive obligation 1o transfer economic bensfil
tuamh'dpu-ly,Itlspmhabh'matsh‘amhrufémnumhmﬂhhﬂlbemqmmdmmandﬁm
nmuuntnfﬂunbﬂgaﬂunmnhemumdrelhtﬂy.Emmﬂh:mhdmﬁadbysdh&y.hmuf
each activity mmmupnfﬂmhtalurdlraclmwmumdmmmdm:uppmm
involved in undertaking each aclivity. Dimntmmum-ihmhbhnumnthyandMy
to that activity. Shm'ndmﬂﬂdmnnmnbmﬂunmnﬂhityandsuppmmum“
mmmawhmwamwmm&ﬁﬁuunathmmm
hmmmwmm“mﬁm“mmmmﬂlmﬂﬁpmﬂ
charges sliocated on the poriion of the assal's uss,

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on ralsing funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for s charitable puTpOSES
and includes costs of all fundralsing activities events and non-charitable trading,
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Qak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policles (continued)

Charitable activities

These are costs Incurred on the academy trust's educationat operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy frust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangibls fixed assets
Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of

depreciation and any provision for Impalrment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included In the Balance Sheet st cost and ¢

over their expected useful economic Iifs, Where there are specific conditions attached fo the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the
relevant assels ls charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tanplble fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund,

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculsted to
write off the cost of each asset aver its expected useful fives, per the table below.

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold buildings 2% straight line

Fumiture and equipment 20% straight line

Computer equipment 25% straight line

Motor vehicles 20% straight line

Leasehold Land 0.8% (125 years) straight line

Assets in the course of construction are Included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
untit they are brought into use and reclassfied to freshold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review far impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if avents or changes In circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the canying
value-of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impalrments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financlal Activities,
Liabilities -

Liahilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheect date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated religbly. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the acadamy
trust anticipates it will pay fo seftle the debt or the amount [t has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.
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Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obiigation at the reporting date ss a resull
of a past event which It Is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligafion
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the lighility. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within Interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-fine basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabflities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financlal assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13, Prepayments are not financial Instruments:
Amounts due to the charity's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impalment

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detalled in note 14. Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclosure definition, Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial lability, as
the cash setiement has already taken place and thera is an obligation to dsliver services rather than
cash or another financial Instrument. Amounts due fo charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at
face value less any impairment.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered fo pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax

purposes, -
Accordingly, the academy rust is potentislly exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within calegories covered by Part 11, Chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 266 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exciusively o charitable purposes,
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Oak Learning Partnership

Notss to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
{continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Penslon benefits
Retiremont benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Penslon
Scheme ('TPS') and the Local Govemment Pension Scheme (‘LGPS'), These are defined benefit

schemes.

The TPS Is an unfunded schema and confributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employess' working fives with the Acadesmy Trust in such a waey that the pension cost is &
substantially level percentage of cument and future pensionable psyrol. The coniributions are
determined by the Govemment Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credil method, TPS is Bn unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets o assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS Is trested es a defined contribution sdhama for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised In the period to which they relats,

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust In separaie trustee administared funds. Pension scheme assets are measured al fair

Mwmmmwmmmmmm.mmmum
curtaliments. They are Included as parl of staff costs as Incumed, Net Interest on the net defined
MWththhMﬂmmﬂm.h
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assals, calculated
mulliplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used o
discount the benefit obligations. The difference betwesn the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual retum on the scheme assets Is recognised In other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately In other recognised gains and losses.

g

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the

charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
Imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Dapartment for
Education.

Restricted pension funds comprise all income, costs and actuarial valuations associated with the
Local Government pension scheme (LGPS).

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated end are based on historical experience and other
factors, Including expectations of future evenis that are believed to be reascnable under the

circumstances,
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Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results, The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit iability depands on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of essumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disciosed In note 23, will impact the carrying amoun! of the
pension lizbility. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the fatest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
liabllity at 31 August 2020, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liabifity.

2 Donations and capltal grants

Restricted
Restricted fixed asset 2019/20 2018/19
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Other voluntary income
Capital grants - 32,053 32,053 41,306
Other donations 24,085 - 24,066 13,483

24,085 32,0583 56,118 54 788
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Oak Learning Partnership
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{continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE/ESFA revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Grants

Other DfE Group grants

Other government
grants

Local authority grants

Non-governmant
grants and other income

Non-government grants
Total grants

4 Other trading activities

Catering income
Other sales

5 Investment income

Shert term deposits

Restricted 2019/20 2019119
funds Total Total
£ £ £
6,658,603 6,858,503 2,705,590
70,000 70,000 130,000
828,417 828,417 221,493
7,556,920 7,566,920 3,167,083
5,197,578 5,197,578 1,604,131
44,637 44,637 23768
12,799,135 12,799,135 4,785,010
Unrestricted  Restricted 2019/20 201919
funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £
55,770 - 56,770 16,973
229,037 14,256 244,193 58,563
285,707 14,256 209,963 73,536
- Unrestricted  2019/20 201919
funds Total Total
£ £ £
675 675 177
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(continued)
6 Expenditure
Non Pay Expenditure
2019120 201919
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £

Expenditure on
raising funds
Direct costs - - 40,352 40,352 48,591
Academy's
educational
operations
Direct costs 8,828,661 473,908 725,696 10,028,265 3,642,174
Allocated support
costs 1,820,417 992,810 806,181 3,619,408 1,315,681

10,649,078 1,465,718 1,572,229 13,688,025 4,805 445
Net iiicomei{expenditure) for the year includes:

2019/20 201848
£ £

Operating lease rentals 283,589 15,525
Depreciation £31,979 115,218
Fees payable to auditor - audit 14,525 14,525
- other audit services 7,600 8,225
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

7 Charltabie activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

Analysls of support costs
Support staff costs
Depreciation

Premises costs

Other suppott costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

(continued)
Total
Total 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
10,028,265 3,542,174
3,619,408 1,315,881
13647673 _ 486785
Educational 2019720 201840
operations Total Total
£ £ £
1,820,417 1,820,417 762,081
58,072 58,072 12,574
934,738 934,738 230,516
784,056 784,085 290,810
22,125 22125 16,780
3,619,408 3,619,408 1,315,661
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(continued)
8 Staff
Staff costs
2019720 2019119
£ £
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries 7,082,191 2,680 479
Social security costs 640,306 237,299
Pension costs 2,260,638 838,653
9,983,135 3,754,330
Agency staff costs 620,473 261,209
Staff restructuring costs 45,470 21,997
10,649,078 4,037,637
31 August
2020 2018
£ £
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Severance payments 45,470 21,987

Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments lotalling

£45,470 (2019::£21,897), Individually, the payments were:
Non-statutory payments £12,606

Non-statutory payments £18,500

Non-statutory payments £8,000

Non-statufory payments £4,364

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:
- 2019/20 2019/19
No No

Teachers 115 78

Administraticn and support 21 2

Management ' 7 5
333 304
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{continued)

8 Staff (continued)
Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pensfon costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

31 August
2020
No
£60,001 - £70,000 5
£70,001 - £80,000 2
£80,001 - £90,000 1
1

£110,001 - £120,000
Key management parsonnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustess and the senior
mnmgummuuahdmpmtmwmdmmmmmm
pension contributions and employer national Insurance contributions Taceived by key
perscnnel for their services lo the academy trust was £322,811 (2018; £122,837).

|

9 Central services
No central services were provided by the academy trust to its academies during the period and no
central charges arose.

10 Related party transactions - trustees’ remuneration and axpenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other bensfits from employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff trustees only recelve remuneration In respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their confratis of

employment.
The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows™™
Elaine Parkinson (Executive Headteacher (resigned as a Trustee 04.03.20)):

Remuneration; £110,000 - £115,000 (2019 - £45,000 - £50,000)
Empioyer's pension contributions: £25,000 - £30,000 (2019 - £5,000 - £1 0,000)

Christine Reynolds (Headteacher (resighed as a Trustee 31.08.19))
Remuneration: (2019 - £25,000 - £30,000)
Employer's pension contributions; {2019 - £0 - £5,000)

During the year ended 31 August 2020, trave! and subsistence expenses totalling £120 (2019 - £NiI
were reimbursed or paid directly to 1 trustees (2019 - 0).

Other related party fransactions involving the trustees are set out in note 24.
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{continued)

11 Trustees' and officers’ Insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement {RPA),
an altemative to insurance where UK govemmeant funds cover losses that arise, This scheme protects
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, emrors or omissions occurring whilst on
Academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees
and cofficers indemnity slement from the overall cost of the RPA scheme,

12 Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Furniture

land and and Computer Motor

buildings equipment hardware vehicles Tolal

£ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September
2019 - 989,314 356,617 30,000 1,375831
Revaluations 13,816,000 - - - 13,815,000
Additions 44,071 129,244 106,667 8,200 2B8.182
At 31 August 2020 13,858,071 1,118,558 463,284 38200 15,472,113
Depreciation
At 1 September
2018 - 81,793 31,863 1,563 115219
Charge for the year 232,579 201,177 93,534 4,689  £31879
At 31 August 2020 232,579 282,970 125,387 6,252 _ £47.108
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 13,626,492 835,588 337,887 31,948 14831915
A? 31 August 2019 - 907,521 324,754 28,437 1,260,712

During the prior year, the desktop valuations in respect of Elms Bank, Hazel Wood High Scheo! and
Unsworth Primary School were not available, therefore the land and buildings were tranifemed at nil
value, During the current year, the desktop vauation as at 31 August 2019 has been received and the
leasehold land and buildings value has been adjusted accordingly, The impact of this Is an increase in
the net book valug in the current year of £13,845,000,

Pageb0 - -



Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(continued)

13 Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable

Prepayments
Accrued grant and other income

14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals

Deferred income

Deferred Income

Deferred income at 1 September 2019
Resources deferred in the perjod
Amounts released from previous periods

Deferred income at 31 August 2020

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holdin
organiser grants, rates relfef and universa! infant free sch

respect of 2019/20. -
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31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
5,263 1,963
171,209 179,155
44,995 118,268
191,045 178,059
416,513 478,446
31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
256,168 401,226
162,365 146,290
116,487 82280
297,988 104,412
60,635 103,185
883,643 837,402
31 August 3
2020 2019
4 E
103,185 -
60,635 103,185
(103,185) S

60635 103,185

g funds received In advance for sports
ool meals grant funding from the ESFA In
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Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(continued)

16 Analysis of net asseots botwesn funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:

Restrictad Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset

funds funds funds Total funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 14,831,915 14,831,915
Current assets 548,472 1,548,502 23,083 2,120,057
Current fiabllitiss - (883,643) = (883,843)
Pension scheme liability - _ (5,578,000) - _ [5,578,000)
Total net assets — 548472 _(4913141) _ 14854008 _ 10490329
Comparative information In respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted Restricted
Unrastricted general fixed asset
funds funds funds Total funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assels - - 1,260,712 1,260,712
Cuirent assets 302,442 1,168,923 - 1,471,365
Cumrent liabilities - (837,402) - {837 402)
Pension scheme liability - (3,779,000) - {3,778,000)
Total net assets 302,442 (3,447,479) 1,260,712  (1,884,326)

17 Commitments under operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2020 the total of the academy frust's future minimum lease payments under

non-canceflable operating leases was:

n 31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ B £
Amounts due within one year - 280,700 276,734
Amounts due between cne and five years 791,753 1,065,813
Amounts due after five years - 1896
1,072,453 1,332,743

Page 57
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(continued)

18 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash inflowl{outflow) from operating activities

Net expend!ture for the reporting period (as per the statement of

financial activities)

Depreciation

Capital grants from DFE and other capltal income
Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme inherited

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decreasel{Increase) in debtors

Increase in creditors

Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

19 Cash flows from Investing activities

Dividends, Interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tanglble fixed assels
CapHal funding received from sponsors and others

Net cash used in investing activities

20 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand i
Total cash and cash equivalents
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2019120 2018119
£ £
(453,348)  (1,622,325)
531,679 116,219
(32,053) (41,308)
(675) {177
735,000 359,000
- 3,124,000
77,000 34,000
61,833 (478, 448)
46,241 B37 402
. (282, 164)
966,079 2,045,203
2019720 201819
£ £
675 177
(288,182) {163,468)
32,053 41,308
{255,454) (122,013)
31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
1,703,544 982018
1,703,544 952 819
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Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

22 Members® liabllity

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute fo the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year aftar they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £Nil for the debts and
ligbifittes contracted before they ceased to be a member.

23 Pension and simllar obligations

The academy trust's employees bslong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pansion
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staft and the Local Govemment
Pension Schema (LGPS) for non-tesching staff, which is managed by . Both are mulli-empioyer
defined benefil schames,

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS
31 March 2018,

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial
year.

Teachers’ Penslon Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) Is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for teachers in academiss. Al
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enroiment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both member and employer makes contributions. as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer, Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers® Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS In accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directiors
2014 published by HM Tressury every 4 years. The alm of the review is to specify the level of fufure
contributions, Actuarial scheme valuations are dapandent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other faclors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carriad
out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2018. The key elements of the valuation and subseguent consultation are:
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Notes to the Financial Statoments for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

23 Pension and similar obligations (continued)
+ employer contribution rates set at 23,68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration

fevy)

* total scheme liabifities {pensions currently in payrment and the estimated cost of future tienefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimaled future
contributions together with the notionai investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million,
giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

* the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, Is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of retum is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% In excess of eamings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominafl rate of return including eamings growth is 4.45%,

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £875,567 (2019: £229,784).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions websiis.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS s an unfunded multi-employer pansion scheme.
The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to fhe scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information avallable on the scheme,

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS s a funded defined-banafit schema, with the sssets held in separate frustes-adminisisred
funds. The total contibution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £827,000 (2018 -
£319,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £843,000 {2019 - £248,000) and employees’
contributions totalied £184,000 (2019 - £71,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
20.5 per cent for amployers and betwsan 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantes that, in
the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabiliies
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came nto force on 18 July 2013,

Principal actuarial assumptions
31 August 31 August

2020 2019
. o % o
Rate of increase in salaries 3.00 3.10
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentinfiation , 2.20 230
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.70 1.80

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future Improvements In the mortality
rates, The assumed fife expectations on retirement age 65 are:
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020

(continued)

23 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Retiring today

Malss retiring today
Females retiring today
Retiring in 20 years

Males retiring in 20 years
Females retiring in 20 years

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate -0.5%
Salary increase rate +0.5%
Penslon increase rate {CP!) +0.5%

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Government bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid asseis

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was (£169,000) (2019 - £359,000),
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31 August 31 August
2020 2019
20.60 20.80
23.10 23,10
22,00 22.00
25.00 24.80
31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
1,963,000.00 1,685,000.00
279,000.00 258,000.00
1,673,000.00  1,301,000.00
31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
5,247,000 4,801,000
1,235,000 1,058,000
540,000 564,000
665,000 635,000
7,717,000 7,058,000




Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
{continued)

23 Pansion and similar obligations (continued)
Amounts recognisad in the statement of financial activities

2019/20 20198
£ £
Current service cost (733,000) (358,000}
Past service cost {2,000) -
Interest income 142,000 101,000
fnterest cost (219,000) (&7,000)
Total amount recognized in the SOFA {812,000 (325,000}
Changes in the present value of defined banefit obligations were as follows:
2019/20 2019419
£ £
At start of period 10,838,000 -
Conversion of academy trusts - 8,605,000
Current gervice cost 1,376,000 607,000
interest cost 219,000 101,000
Employee contributions 184,000 71,000
Actuarial (gainjfloss 878,000 654,000
Past service cost 2,000 -
At 31 August 13295000 _ 10838000
Changes in the fair value of academy trust's share of scheme assets:
2019/20 2018H8
£ £
Al start of period 7,059,000 -
Conversion of academy lrusts - 6,381,000
Interest income 142,000 67,000
Actuarial gain/{loss) (311,000) 202,000
Employer contributions 643,000 248,000
Employes contributions o o 184,000 71,000
. At 31 August B . 7,717,000 7,050,000

24 Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn
from local public and private seclor organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the trustees have an Interest. All transactions Involving such organisations are conducted In
accordance with the requirements of the Handbook, Including notfying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2018 and obtalning Hmlrupprwnlﬂmmmihdfwmh‘tﬂumw
trusf's financial regulstions and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related
party fransactions. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

Page 63



Oak Learning Partnership

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2020
(continued)

24 Related party transactions {continued)

Expenditure related party transactions

A Boroda (Trustee) is also a Trustee of Digital Inc

Transactions totalling £100 (2019: ENiI) reiating to the dalivery of a lecture as part of the Oak Leaming

- Parinership Curriculum Leadership Session took place during the year ending 31st August 2020, At
o the balance sheet dats, the smount dus o Digita! Inc was ENII (2019: ENIT).
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